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Selby Funeral Home
Reisterstown, Maryland

Private Access

10 MAIN STREET is an example of an original house form in the Colonial
Revival of the second and third décades of the twentieth century: a two-
story square house with a pyramidal roof. It is served the communit& many
years as the funeral home and residenée of its proprietor. Its older back building
was a stable, grainery and hay barrack, carriage house, a storage area for the

hearse and a display area for caskeis.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

10 MAIN STREET is a Colonial-Revival frame house, two and one-half storeys high,
square in plan, with a truncated pyramidal roof., It dates from ca, 1910-1920, In
the late twentieth century its first storey was veneered with stone and a one storey
stone~faced flat roofed addition replaced its front porch. At or about the same time
a two storey flat-roofed addition was added to the rear, the west, its first storey
faced with stone, its second with aluminum siding. The second storey of the original

house is also faced with aluminum siding, The roof is of asbestos shingles,

On the east or front facade, two broad shallow bay windows are in the second
storey, each with three 1/1 windows. Three 1/1 windows are on each side facade of the
second storey and two wide dormers are in each slope of the roof, the dormers probably
original but now with modern windows.

The house has most recently been used as a funeral home; it is now vacant,

awaiting demolition for a shopping center.

The cellar, first amd second storeys are mostly refinished with modern plywood
paneling and large doorways replace the original openings; the staircase from the
first to the second floors has been removed but it remains from the secomd to the
third, Basically the original plan was one of four rooms with the staircase rising
between the two northerly rooms,

The remaining portion of the original stair is entirely of ocak with three turned
bhalusters to each tread and massive paneled newels supporting a moulded handrail,
The third floor plan is original, as are its detalls including architraves and doors,
Architravesare of natural pine, three planes with cyma reversa at the inner edge,

Portions of the cellar are unfinished; the walls are of rubble stone and they
appear to coincide with the structure above. Joists are circular sawn,

The BACK BUILDING behind # 10 is, in part, clder than the house. Two storeys
high, of frame, covered with asbestos shingles, it is in three basic parts: a shed~-
roofed section to the east; a middle section with a gabled roof, ridge north=-south;
and a westerly section with a gabled roof, ridge east-west, ‘

Only the easterly section has a cellar, with stone walls and earth floor; Jjoists
above are circular sawn., The interior of the easterly section is fitted as a modern
apartment but earlier in this century it was used as a display for caskets, It appears
to date from the early twentleth century.

The middle and westerly sections of the back building date from the late 19th
century, the middle section being the older. Both sections are unfinished intermally,
largely in their original condition, The circular-sawn braced frame structure was
sheathed with straight-sawn vertical boards; former exterior walls now enclosed by
the additions retain battens with beveled edges. Larger members of the frame are -
Joined with pegged mortise-and-tendon and cut nails were used for smaller members and
for the board-and-batten siding, A hand-powered elevator is noted with these painted
inscriptions on its walls:

E.D. Selby Elevator completed
Glen Mowris M.D. June 25, 1885
Thomas 0, Cook

(E.D.Selby was the grandfather of the last private owner of this property; Glen Mor=is
was a rallroad depot about where Reisterstown Lumber Co is now located) Originally t.
elevator was about three feet square; it is now about three by eight.

The middle section is a carriage and hearse house and the westerly section was a
stable, grainery and hay barrack,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY




AR-1269

El SIGNIFICANCE
* " PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW _

—_PREHISTORIC  —ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC . __comﬁnum"rl'vi PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ~ __RELIGION

—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC © _CONSERVATION _LAW ) ¢ _SCIENCE

—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS . —LITERATURE ___SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 XARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION —MILITARY __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART ‘ __ENGINEERING —_MUSIC __THEATER

X 1800-1899° X COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
X.1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT _XOTHER (SPECIFY)

local history

—INVENTION

ITECT
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCH . E.D.Selby

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

10 MAIN STREET is a typical example of a house type popular in the early 20th
century Colonial Revival, square with a pyramidal rcof. It has long been the funeral
home with residence above of a family undertaking business serving the immediate
community.

The BACK BUILDING is a typical stable and carriage house required to support
village life in the pre-automobile era; in part predating the house this one was
adapted as a storage structure for the horse-drawn, and later the motor-powered hearse,
FPurndamental additions provided space for other aspects of this community businesg~-
the storage and display of caskets,

~ 10 MAIN STREET and its abck building are awaiting demolition for a shopping center,
o This property shares its earliest history with that of # 14 MAIN STREET (q.v.)
-They were both built on land which originally belonged to Philip Reister, son of the
town's founder,

Philip Reister, Jr eventually acquired the land in 1827 from his mother Eve, widow
of Philip Reister, When Philip Jr died in 1872, Philip Reister Owings, acting as execu~
tor for the estate sold the parcel to E.D.Selby (EHA 77/564-5) There was no house
corresponding to the present one standing then, Selby kept only part of this lot--
that which is the site of #10., The southern part he sold off almost immediately to
Henry Waggoner,

The original house ( which was later to be rebuilt several times) was existing by
1877, There is a picture of this structure taken in that year, The house then had a
flat roof, was three storeys tall and the property was surrounded by a- white picket
fence, A slgn on the front read:

Edwin Selby
Carpenter and Cabinet Maker
It was customary for coffins to be made by cabinet makers who then, usually transported
the deceased to its place of burial. It was a short step, then, to becoming the
undertaker, Selby's advertisement in the 1877 Hopkins Atlas reads:
Edwin D, Selby
Carpenter and Builder, Undertaker &c Prompt
Prompt attention given to funerals, and a large stock of
Coffins, Trimmings and Shrouds kept
constantly on hand,
Cabinet making and repairing,
In 1890, another photograph of the house was taken and considerable changes had
~—%taken place. The fence is gone., The porch steps extend across the entire front of the
ouilding. The straight roof line of the original building had been altered to include
dormer windows on the third floor and there was now a peaked roof. (B, Frank, op cit)

Selby died in 1908 and in his will, he left all his property egually divided

between his wife Cecilia and two daughters, Mary E, Tipton and Olivia S, Eline,wife

“CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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8 Sighificance, continued

of J.F. Eline (BC Wills 128/15) Eline apparently became involved with the business
and took it over, The establishment became known as Elines, His widow, Olivia,
devised the house to their two sons Joseph Edwin Eline and John James Eline in her
will. (B C Wills 31/130) They had helped their father with the husiness and sought
to continue it, This was 1935.
More changes to the house took place (described in the description section)

as the house was brought to its present form, The front porch was enclosed, In 1956
the stonework was added to the exterior.

By 1960, J. Edwin Eline had gained the title to the property (3718/635). His
brother James had relinquished his share, The Elines continued the family business
in this location until 1977, and then moved to the southern part of town. The house
was sold in that year to Shopco and awaits demolition for a mall.,
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